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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  Good

          3  afternoon, good afternoon.  The hearing was

          4  rescheduled from 1:00 to 1:30, I hope everyone got

          5  notice of that and no one was put out as a result of

          6  that.  Thank you all very much for being here.  My

          7  name is Jim Gennaro, Chair of the Committee on

          8  Environmental Protection.  I'd like to welcome you

          9  to this hearing.  Today, the Committee will hear

         10  testimony on Intros. Number 122, 124 and 585, on the

         11  subject of the enforcement and compliance with the

         12  City's Right To Know Law.

         13                 Local Law 26, also known as the New

         14  York City Community Right To Know Law, was passed by

         15  the City Council in 1988.  The purpose of the law is

         16  to protect the environment, the health and safety of

         17  the community and by providing information about the

         18  exposure to and dangers that may be associated with

         19  the storage, use and handling of hazardous

         20  substances, extremely hazardous substances and

         21  regulated toxic substances.  Protection from these

         22  harmful substances is vitally important toward safe

         23  guarding the environment and the health of City

         24  residents, workers and visitors.

         25                 It is crucial that our City maintain
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          2  and adopt the most effective safety measures aimed

          3  at mandating compliance with the Right To Know Law.

          4  To this end, Intro. Number 122, 124 and 585 seek to,

          5  one, strengthen the City's Right To Know Law by

          6  requiring that the DEP include additional

          7  information concerning enforcement of these laws in

          8  its Annual Report.  The other bill would make sure

          9  that fees collected pursuant to the Right To Know

         10  Law be used only for the purposes of doing

         11  inspections of the facilities that are subject to

         12  the law, and of the enforcement provisions of the

         13  law, and doubling the current penalties that may be

         14  assessed for violations of the Community Right To

         15  Know Law.

         16                 Today, we'll also seek to hear

         17  testimony and gather information regarding DEP's

         18  enforcement of the Right To Know Law and ways in

         19  which to strengthen the law and people's compliance

         20  with it, and thereby further safe- guarding the

         21  community and everyone in the City of New York.

         22                 Before I call our first witness, I

         23  just would like to thank DEP for their good work in

         24  this area.  It's always a pleasure to have you,

         25  Commissioner, here with us, Deputy Commissioner, I
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          2  guess, would be more appropriate, and all of the

          3  good people at DEP with whom I work very closely

          4  with on a day to- day basis from the macro issues of

          5  the entire City down to the micro issues of my

          6  district and its little concerns.  So, I thank you

          7  for that, and, let me score some points here, hang

          8  on.  We have a new representative from the Mayor's

          9  Office, who'll be joining us on an on- going basis

         10  now, Mr. Chris Manning, will be taking the place of

         11  Aaron Stevens, who served the Mayor's Office so

         12  well.  So, we look forward to working with Chris in

         13  the weeks and months to come, welcome.  So, without

         14  further ado, I'd like to welcome my friend,

         15  Commissioner Bob Avaltroni from DEP, and even know

         16  Bob's my friend, we're still going to put him

         17  through the ritual of swearing him in, as we do all

         18  our witnesses so welcome, thank you very much,

         19  Donna.

         20                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         21  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         22  to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

         23  the truth?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I do.

         25                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

          3  Commissioner, please state your name for the record

          4  and proceed with your testimony.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          6  good afternoon Mr. Chairman and Members of the

          7  Committee.  I'm Bob Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner

          8  of the Bureau of Environmental Compliance, New York

          9  City DEP.  On behalf of Commissioner Ward, I want to

         10  thank you for the opportunity to testify on the

         11  Right to Know program and Intros. 122, 124 and 585,

         12  all of which would amend the Administrative Code

         13  Provisions that govern the RTK program.

         14                 Before I comment on the legislation,

         15  I have a few general comments on the Right To Know

         16  program.  We at DEP have continued to implement new

         17  strategies within the Bureau of Environmental

         18  Compliance, which have enabled us to cast our

         19  regulatory net more widely across the large universe

         20  of facilities that use and store hazardous

         21  substances.  By requiring businesses to provide

         22  detailed information on exactly what substance they

         23  use, how much they store on the premises, how the

         24  stubs (sic) are labeled and where they are stored,

         25  we are creating a level of accountability that
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          2  protects the interest of our respective

          3  constituents.

          4                 Just deviating from that text a

          5  little bit Mr. Chairman, as you know, we work very

          6  hard with this Committee to see that we could

          7  actually get a more broad- brushed approach to the

          8  industry at large, and to the people that store

          9  hazardous materials.  Along those lines, I'd just

         10  like to say that obviously the Mayor was a very

         11  vigorous supporter of that, and I want to commend

         12  you for your role as a lead in this Environmental

         13  Committee and getting a consultant on board to

         14  further enhance our efforts.  So, I just want to

         15  personally thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you Commissioner.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         19  Pursuant to the RTK Law's requirements, DEP annually

         20  submits a report to the Mayor and the Council that

         21  summarizes the work of the RTK program.  The RTK

         22  Annual Report is prepared by October 1st of each

         23  year.  It analyzes information submitted to DEP in

         24  the Facility Information Forms, as known as FIF's,

         25  that are due every March 1st, which discloses the
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          2  presence of hazardous substance present during the

          3  prior calendar year.  I brought along additional

          4  copies for Members of the most recent Annual Report,

          5  published earlier this month, which analyzes the

          6  2002 Right To Know filings.  In the interest of

          7  time, my testimony does not reiterate facts about

          8  the RTK program that are comprehensive and in detail

          9  in the Right To Know Annual Report.

         10                 That concludes my general remarks on

         11  the subject. I have a few comments on each of the

         12  three Intros. On today's agenda.

         13                 With respect to Intro. 122, we

         14  support this bill as drafted with some minor

         15  technical changes that we could discuss with

         16  Committee counsel as a later time.  As you may know,

         17  many of these substantial changes have already been

         18  included in the Right To Know Annual Report.

         19                 Intro. 124.  This legislation would

         20  amend the section of the Right To Know Law that

         21  authorizes the DEP to require filing fees from the

         22  businesses that are submitting FIF's every year.

         23  The legislation would prevent DEP from using this

         24  fee revenue to support any program expense other

         25  than inspections.  DEP opposes this bill for that
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          2  reason.  Although we believe very strongly in the

          3  inspection and enforcement functions of the Right To

          4  Know program, there are other Right To Know

          5  functions that require resources as well.  Without

          6  the fee revenue to support the non- inspectional

          7  functions of the RTK program, these functions would

          8  have to be supported by tax levy funds, the

          9  availability of which is extremely limited at this

         10  time.  Depriving the non- inspectional functions of

         11  the Right To Know program of the fee revenue, would

         12  mean that these functions would have to compete for

         13  funds with all other tax levy- funded programs or go

         14  unfunded.  Eliminating the funding for non

         15  inspectional elements of the program jeopardizes the

         16  viability of the entire Right To Know program.

         17                 In essence, what I'm saying too, just

         18  to deviate from my text, is we have the opportunity

         19  now to support non inspection functions that were

         20  very important to us, and not only what we do with

         21  the Right To Know program, but we do, what we do

         22  with dealing with hazardous materials and dealing

         23  with other areas like the Joint Terrorism Task

         24  Force, NYP Counter- Terrorism, what have you.  So,

         25  it allows us much more latitude, and for that
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          2  reason, we oppose the bill.

          3                 Intro. 585.  This legislation would

          4  amend the provision of the Right To Know Law that

          5  established penalties for violations of the law's

          6  provisions with respect to filing FIF's, labeling

          7  hazardous substance and submitting risk management

          8  plans.  Currently, for these three sets of

          9  requirements, the minimum penalties are $250 for the

         10  first violation, $1,750 for a second violation, and

         11  a minimum of $3,750 for all subsequent violations.

         12  The maximum penalties are $2,500 for a first

         13  violation, $5,000 for a second violation and $10,000

         14  for all subsequent violations.

         15                 Into. 585 would double each of these

         16  penalties. The penalty range for a first violation

         17  would become $500 to $5,000, for a second violation,

         18  $3,500 to $10,000, and for all subsequent

         19  violations, $7,500 to $20,000.  DEP supports these

         20  penalty changes.  And, I commend the Council, again,

         21  for their vigorous approach in dealing with this

         22  issue.  As you know, again, deviating from my

         23  prepared statement, we work very hard in dealing

         24  with the Hannley Bill (phonetic), I think, which was

         25  an excellent tool for us to use in extremely

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  hazardous substances violators.  And, I think this

          3  goes another step forward in that regard and we

          4  commend you and we look forward to supporting that

          5  bill.

          6                 Intro. 585 would also make several

          7  other changes to the penalty provisions of the Right

          8  To Know Law.  The bill would authorize separate

          9  violations for every substance whose presence was

         10  not disclosed in a FIF, and for every day of non

         11  compliance.

         12                 With respect to filing, labeling and

         13  risk management plan requirements, the bill would

         14  define a second or subsequent violation as one that

         15  occurs within five years of an initial finding of

         16  violation.

         17                 The bill would authorize

         18  administrative law judges or hearing officers to

         19  consider, when setting penalties, whether or not the

         20  violations were voluntarily disclosed.  And, the

         21  bill would authorize the imposition of additional

         22  penalties for corporations identified in section 80-

         23  10 of the State's Penal Law.  DEP also supports

         24  these provisions of Intro. 585.

         25                 Together with the increase in the
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          2  penalty amounts discussed earlier, we believe these

          3  changes in enforcement policies would further foster

          4  compliance with the Right To Know program.  I thank

          5  you again for the opportunity to testify before the

          6  Committee and I'd be happy to answer any questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  thank you Commissioner.  Before I begin my

          9  questioning, I'd like to recognize a Member of the

         10  Committee, Council Member Serrano, from the Bronx,

         11  has joined us.  Thank you.  Thank you for being

         12  here. And, before we get back to talking about the

         13  Intros., with regard to the consultant that was

         14  brought on board to try to get a better grip on

         15  those entities that were sort of outside the Right

         16  To Know program who weren't filing their FIF forms,

         17  as mandated by the Right To Know Law, as a result of

         18  this effort, how many new filers have been sort of

         19  brought into the process?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Over

         21  a thousand Mr. Chairman.  And, again, this again

         22  broadened our regulatory net, which, again, we --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Bringing the

         24  tote board up to how much?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We
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          2  have approximately 6,000 facilities, and that's

          3  excluding the utilities which range in the area of

          4  47,000, as well.  So, we, again, we are looking to

          5  continue this too.  What we did is we brought the

          6  contractor on board, we looked at it, and obviously

          7  we saw success, and we will be obviously moving

          8  ahead with the consultant in the future.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Terrific,

         10  terrific, I'm glad we're able to work together on

         11  that.  Certainly, it's critical to get more filers

         12  into the program, and certainly what we seek to do

         13  by this legislation is to sort of make it tougher to

         14  sort of stay outside the program.  And, we just want

         15  to send a very clear signal, in every way we can, by

         16  bringing people on to find people or to pass tougher

         17  penalties for those who would try to operate outside

         18  the system.  I'd like to thank you for your

         19  dedication in that regard in bringing these people

         20  into the system.

         21                 I have a couple of questions.  Let me

         22  just put these in some sort of.  Currently, are the

         23  FIF forms used only for the Community Right To Know

         24  program, are there, do they have any other use

         25  besides that?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We,

          3  we are able to use the filings in many, many areas.

          4  We do, obviously, in the world we live in, in post-

          5  9/11, obviously conditions have changed throughout

          6  the world and throughout the country, we use these

          7  facility, the FIF's to deal with sensitive areas.

          8  As I said, we work jointly and one of the reasons I

          9  oppose the bill, we work jointly with the NYPD,

         10  their Counter- Terrorism Unit, the FBI. So, we use

         11  those for a variety of reasons.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  With

         13  regard to the fees, the one, and having them used

         14  for the inspectors, that was the Intro. That was not

         15  supported --

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         17  That was 124 --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- By the DEP

         19   --

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- I

         21  believe --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right.  Now,

         23  I think our real intent was to sort of try to keep

         24  the RTK fees kind of in the program, so to speak --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --
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          2  Yes --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- And, so, are

          4  they -- to the best of your knowledge, are all of

          5  the fees that are generated by the Right To Know

          6  program used for Right To Know oriented --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          8  Yes they are

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Expenses? --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         11  And as you've heard me testified, I think, many

         12  times through the years, what we've attempted to do

         13  is obviously broaden the responsibility of our

         14  division or emergency response and technical

         15  assessment, which really runs the Right To Know

         16  program, and also has the response for, emergent

         17  response for hazardous materials.  We've tied those

         18  to the hip, and we did this quite a while ago, and

         19  it became even more relevant, obviously, in the

         20  post- 9/11 atmosphere.  So, we would like to, again,

         21  maintain that flexibility to use --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         24  The funds that do support the Right To Know program,

         25  as written, in its entirety, as well as the many
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          2  other aspects that we've taken on since 9/11.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, the RTK

          4  program sustains itself, or are there other monies

          5  that have to be put in to --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          7  No, it sustains itself.  And, as I said, it sustains

          8  not only the Right To Know program, as I said, as

          9  written, but the many things that we do with respect

         10  to hazardous materials in our emergency response

         11  area as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you're able

         13  to sort of generate more revenue, so to speak,

         14  through this fine structure or whatever, do you have

         15  any thoughts on what aspects of the RTK program

         16  you'd like to bolster with additional funds?  Let's

         17  say you had -- you're in a situation where the

         18  program was generating more revenue as a result of

         19  more filers coming in and sort of the more strict

         20  fine structure, whatever, so, more money's coming

         21  in, what would you envision we do with that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         23  First, I know we've had this conversation.  First

         24  and foremost, I think, when we're speaking, you

         25  know, revenue is obviously a major issue. But,
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          2  obviously, what we have to deal with first, and you

          3  and I, you know, have agreed, is the public safety

          4  aspect of the Right To Know program.  So, that

          5  becomes first and foremost in our, any endeavor that

          6  we have, but the fee revenue would enable us to, I

          7  guess, support things as events transpire.

          8                 For instance, again, one could never

          9  have predicted pre- 9/11, that conditions would be

         10  as they are today, in this world we live in, and the

         11  City we live in.  So, it would allow -- right now we

         12  are funded appropriately for the times we live in.

         13  We think we're doing an awful lot and we're

         14  protective of the public and the constituents that

         15  you serve and I serve. And, that's not to say as

         16  conditions don't change, that revenue would come in

         17  handy to, let's say, do things --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         20  That would be outside the box.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How has the

         22  program kind of changed in sort of like a post- 9/11

         23  scenario?  I know there's more entities to interact

         24  with, more, I guess, Federal entities that may be

         25  concerned with substances that are being used,
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          2  perhaps closer attention being paid to the risk

          3  management plans for those that would store the

          4  really hazardous substances.  How is the operation

          5  of the RTK program in people that access it changed

          6  in sort of a post- 9/11 world?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          8  Again, it's something I'm very proud of.  You know,

          9  the Mayor has obviously had this at the forefront of

         10  his efforts, and obviously looking at the security

         11  of the City.  So, we are very proactive in dealing

         12  with our partners in the New York Police Department,

         13  the Counter- Terrorism Unit, the Joint Terrorism

         14  Task Force.  And, so the sharing of information is

         15  better than it's ever been, and their needs become

         16  our needs.

         17                 We recognize that our role is that to

         18  be a support function of these great law enforcement

         19  agencies.  And, I am privileged to serve this Mayor,

         20  I'm privileged to work with the Deputy Commissioners

         21  in the Counter- Terrorism Unit, as well as

         22  Commissioner Kelly.  And, that's something, again,

         23  in this post 9/11 environment, is something we're

         24  very cognizant of, and that information becomes very

         25  valuable to us.  Not only in the Right To Know
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          2  filings, also with regard to our emergency response,

          3  which we were fortunate enough to, had the foresight

          4  to look forward and put units together with some

          5  tremendous technical expertise where they were able

          6  to, were able to make technical assessments of

          7  vulnerabilities that are, again, very supportive to

          8  those that protect us from a security prospective.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me just

         10  talk a little bit about the Risk Management plans.

         11  Those that are developed by organizations that use

         12  EHS's, right?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         14  Risk management plans --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- The

         16  extremely hazardous substances --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         18  Yes, those are --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Risk

         20  Management plan --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         22  Part of it --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Outside of DEP,

         24  who would get those?  How does that work?  I know

         25  that --
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          3  This is, again --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- It's

          5  emergency responders that --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          7  Yea --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- May have to

          9  go in there and --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         11  Yes, we share that right now and we share that with

         12  obviously the police department, the fire

         13  department, those that fall in the emergency

         14  response field.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Is there any,

         16  although it's really not in, a little outside of

         17  DEP's domain to tell corporations or other entities

         18  what they can or can't use in terms of substances,

         19  but is there any DEP program or anything that's in

         20  place that would encourage facilities that use EHS's

         21  to use other substances instead or any kind of

         22  ongoing --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: --

         24  Yea, I think --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Thoughts to
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          2  try to reduce the amount of extremely hazardous

          3  substances that are just stored in New York City?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          5  have worked diligently through another area that's

          6  under our responsibility and that's our EEDU, that's

          7  our Economic, Environment Economic Development Unit,

          8  and these folks have essentially gone out with our

          9  Right To Know people, and had forums with respect to

         10  giving information with respect to the program, and

         11  some of the benefits, as you suggested, that may be

         12  put forward to those that would use less in the way

         13  of hazardous materials.

         14                 That being said, I think one of the

         15  biggest impetus for someone to do that, would be the

         16  fact that they would not have to pay a filing fee,

         17  and also, they would not have to put the time, and

         18  there is significant time put into a plan.  So, I

         19  think we've, you know, we've educated the public by

         20  being proactive and going out into the community,

         21  where people do business and they have to use

         22  hazardous materials, where an alternative might be

         23  in their best interest.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have any

         25  sense of how many facilities may have decreased
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          2  their inventories of exhuming hazardous substances?

          3  Is that a trend?  Is that going on?  I'm just

          4  curious as to whether or not this is --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: -- I

          6  don't have a number for you, but the feeling is,

          7  obviously, if you presented someone from a business

          8  perspective that is not really going to interfere

          9  with the way they do business, that if they were

         10  able to substitute a material, and they did not have

         11  to do this filing, which has a monetary, a monetary

         12  charge to it, as well as a lot of time invested to

         13  fill out a report, it would be in their best

         14  interest to find that alternative.  Obviously, there

         15  are cases of people doing business where they don't

         16  have those alternatives.  But, we've been proactive

         17  and we've, we feel confident that people are hearing

         18  what we have to say.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, and any

         20  numbers that you may have that would substantiate or

         21  document some kind of movement away from the most

         22  dangerous of the hazardous substances, we'd be

         23  curious to know like what the trend is --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- I

         25  would be happy --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- In the City

          3   --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          5  Happy to share our feelings with you.  Obviously,

          6  because it's such a fluid --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          9  Inventory, it's very difficult to say, well numbers

         10  tell the story.  Because, as you said, when we have

         11  a thousand more folks filing --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         14  The general tendency, the number would be to go up

         15   --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         18  So, it's a fluid, it's a fluid situation --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- As we get

         20  people in, yup --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         22  Right, where the numbers, the devils are not

         23  necessarily in the detail in this particular

         24  instance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  Staff
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          2  has looked through the 2003 report, and we've noted

          3  that dry cleaning plants make up about 16 percent of

          4  the facilities in the City- wide database.  Has DEP

          5  made any efforts to make sure that there is

          6  compliance and initiating enforcement actions in

          7  this segment of the business community?  Like, how

          8  is the DEP getting along with the dry cleaning

          9  industry and visa versa?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  This,

         11  again, is an area where we've had forums with that

         12  industry, and this, quite frankly, falls in the area

         13  too of our air permitting area, it goes outside --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         16  The Right To Know area.  We've been diligent in our

         17  efforts there and in, to bring people into the state

         18  of the art methods that can be employed for dry

         19  cleaning purposes.  So, it's something we do look

         20  at.  It's something, again, we've spoken about.

         21  It's something that we've addressed through our

         22  forums with the industry, and we will continue to do

         23  so in the future.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Does DEP find

         25  it necessary sometimes to hold these forums in other
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          2  languages?  We know that in the dry cleaning field,

          3  there are immigrant communities that are --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          5  Yes we do --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Moving into

          7  that industry --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          9  Yes we do.  We have that, in fact, that is one of

         10  the things that we deal with constantly.  I mean, we

         11  have groups that represent various ethnic

         12  constituents and businesses that call upon us to

         13  come out and we do have that type of forum, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have the

         15  current number of Right To Know inspectors that the

         16  DEP has on staff?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         18  have 15 inspectors.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  15?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, does that

         22  number represent an increase, a decrease from recent

         23  years? --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         25  It's an increase by three over the calendar year.
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          2  And, if you go back again, Mr. Chairman, through the

          3  years, as you know, by combining the areas, as I

          4  suggested before, we've been able to mobilize our

          5  troops under one area of responsibility, and that's,

          6  again, what we call DERTA, Emergency Response and

          7  Technical Assessment.  And, so, we've been able to

          8  increase that unit significantly over the period of

          9  time, and we are using our resources prudently.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With regard to

         11  the consultant that was brought in to try to get a

         12  handle on people that are operating outside the

         13  system and to give you the ability to go after them

         14  and such, is the consultant still engaged?  Is that

         15  an ongoing effort?  Or, did the consultant kind of

         16  impart the DEP some tricks of the trade, so to

         17  speak, and you're carrying on his or her work --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         19  No, in the military language, this consultant will

         20  re- up shortly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pardon?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  The

         23  consultant will re- up shortly.  We --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO  -- terrific --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- We
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          2  have that consultant, you know, he's given us his

          3  expertise, he's worked with our tremendous staff,

          4  and we see the opportunity to proceed with him in

          5  the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I'm for that.

          7  I'm for that. Do you think that the doubling of the

          8  penalties that can be assessed for violations of the

          9  RTK Law, I mean, what's your expectation on

         10  increased compliance that the penalty structure will

         11  foster?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  As I

         13  suggest in my testimony, we support that, obviously,

         14  we feel that it promotes compliance.  No one wants

         15  to pay a heavier fee.  As I referred to before, this

         16  Administration, in conjunction with the Council,

         17  work very diligently for, when we were very

         18  progressive in our efforts in the Hannley Bill

         19  (phonetic), which is --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         22  So, we feel this is a further action that will

         23  promote proper behavior.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you --

         25  yea, that's fine.  Sure, I've just go two more brief
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          2  questions.  I notice that Council Member Koppell,

          3  from the Bronx, has joined used. Always a pleasure

          4  to have him here with us.  With regard to the EHS's,

          5  people have to file a risk management plan, and

          6  there are, DEP goes out to do inspections, just for

          7  risk management plan filers, right?  They are --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- We

          9  look at all the risk management plans --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Are there --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         12  And review all inspections --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Inspections

         14  that are done

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- We

         16  do inspections --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Pursuant to

         18  the --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         20  Yes we do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Is there some

         22  sort of segmentation within the inspector core of

         23  those that deal with EHS's, and do like the risk

         24  management plan thing and those that are just

         25  regular sort of FIF filers?  Is there some sort of
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          2  segmentation within the ranks of DEP inspectors?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          4  identify it and we use a highly qualified technical

          5  staff that's able to look at everything and make the

          6  appropriate evaluations that protect public health

          7  and public safety.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  But I

          9  mean are there certain people who do like only these

         10  kinds of inspections?  Is there like a specialty to

         11  it --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         13  Yes we do --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- So to speak?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes

         16  we do.  And, they are supported also by our

         17  emergency response people when they are not out

         18  there responding to various emergencies.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So of the 15

         20  that are out there doing inspections, there's a

         21  certain sub- group within those 15 that sort of

         22  specialize --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- We

         24  have a total of --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- In that
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          2  area? --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- 42

          4  people in the division of emergency response and

          5  technical assessment, and again, we use the 15, the

          6  15 people are used for response, as well as Right To

          7  Know.  So, we have a tremendous ability to cross

          8  over lines to conduct their jobs.  For instance, if

          9  we are not responding to an emergency right now,

         10  those people can work --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         13  You know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But, the 15 of

         15  the 42 -- because the 42 are like beyond like the

         16  Right To Know program, like they don't do Right To

         17  Know -- it's the 15 inspectors --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- 15

         19  dedicated to Right To Know.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, 15 totally

         21  dedicated to Right To Know, like they don't do other

         22  things?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         24  That's correct. No, they -- I'm sorry if I misled

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, I just

          3  wanted to be -- do you have any number, a hard

          4  number on the numbers of the notices of violation

          5  the DEP issued regarding risk management plan

          6  requirements or people doing the risk management

          7  plans well. Do they get fined --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  -- We

          9  got a total, we got a total of two.  Again, I think

         10  we forced the compliance by being very diligent in

         11  our efforts -- what we do is when we look at a risk

         12  management plan, we will get back to you, if you are

         13  the person filing that --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         16  And you have 30 days to respond to us --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         19  They know we're not going away --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

         22  So, we try to, again, and that's one of the things I

         23  think in supporting the bill, that enhances our

         24  ability to charge more in the way of penalties is

         25  really another impediment to those that don't want
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          2  to comply.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  I had

          4  one other question, I'm just having a little bit of,

          5  I thought about it as I was speaking with you, I had

          6  a little bit of a senior moment there, I think I

          7  lost it.  But --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  --

          9  That's all right, it happens to me all the time --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- But, I will

         11  take this opportunity to give some credit to the

         12  staff of this Committee, Donna De Costanzo and Rich

         13  Colon, who worked hard on this legislation to come

         14  up with what you have said is good work, and we

         15  certainly look forward to working with you to move

         16  these bills as quickly as we can.

         17                 I know that you're not currently in

         18  support of 124, but, our staffs will be talking and

         19  we're very grateful that you're in support of two

         20  out of the three bills, and we look forward to a

         21  good outcome that will further protect the health

         22  and safety of the people of the City of New York,

         23  and thank you for your dedication.  Do we have any

         24  questions?  Thank you Commissioner, thanks folks --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: --
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          2  Thank you very much Mr. Chairman --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- We

          4  appreciate you being here.  Okay, our next witnesses

          5  will come to the panel.  We have Joel Shufro of

          6  NYCOSH and Philip Weinberg of St. John's University

          7  School of Law.  And, that will be followed by Nora

          8  Nealis of the Neighborhood Cleaners Association and

          9  Don Halperin, also with the Neighborhood Cleaners

         10  Association.

         11                 Thank you.  Thank you both for

         12  coming.  Joel, Professor Weinberg, we really

         13  appreciate you both taking the time to come here and

         14  present your views.  You both have served the City

         15  and the environment and this Committee on many

         16  occasions with your testimony and your insights, and

         17  we thank you once again for being here again to help

         18  us out.  And, without further ado, I'll have Donna

         19  De Costanzo administer the oath, which you can do, I

         20  guess, together and then we'll proceed.

         21                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         22  that you are about give, do you swear or affirm to

         23  tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         24  truth?

         25                 (witnesses sworn)
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          2                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thanks very

          4  much.  And, so what we'll do is we'll hear the

          5  statements from both of you, and then we'll question

          6  you both once you've delivered your testimony.  I

          7  have Professor Weinberg's testimony, do I have, oh,

          8  here we go, and we have Joel's too.  So, whoever

          9  wants to go first, is fine with me, just state your

         10  name for the record and proceed with your testimony.

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  My name is Joel Shufro.

         12  I'm the Executive Director of the New York Committee

         13  for Occupational Safety and Health and a member --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- If you could

         15  speak right into the microphone --

         16                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Sure.  My name is

         17  Joel Shufro. I'm the Executive Director of the New

         18  York Committee for Occupational Safety and Health.

         19  A coalition of about 400 local unions --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- I guess

         21  you're right --

         22                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Of 400 local unions

         23  in the New York metropolitan area, and about 200

         24  individuals who are concerned with work place safety

         25  and health.  I also serve as a member of the

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  advisory board of the hazardous substance, as a City

          3  Council representative, overseeing the hazardous

          4  substance Right To Know Law for the City of New

          5  York.  I'm here to support the three proposed bills

          6  that have been submitted, 122, 124, 585, all of

          7  which will strengthen --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Joel, if I

          9  could --

         10                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Yea --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Maybe we

         12  could turn the volume on his microphone up a little

         13  bit?  Whatever --

         14                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Can I, if I talk like

         15  this?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, just right

         17  into it --

         18                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Okay --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Just get

         20  real

         21                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Real close --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Cozy with

         23  the microphone --

         24                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Okay --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- It's a nice
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          2  microphone.

          3                 MR. SHUFRO:  I'll do my best.  The

          4  City's Right To Know Law has two major functions.

          5  First, it provides information needed by emergency

          6  services, such as fire and police, with vital

          7  information that they need about what toxic

          8  substances are stored at a facility when responding

          9  in an emergency.

         10                 Second, the law provides information

         11  about hazardous substances to members of the public,

         12  so that they could know what toxic substances were

         13  being used in their community. This is important for

         14  community members, because it provides them with

         15  information about the siting (sic) of schools, day

         16  care centers, hospitals, as well information about

         17  the risks that the community, that they and their

         18  members may face.  By making the information about

         19  the storage of toxic substances used by facilities

         20  in community, in the community accessible, it also

         21  serves to force facility owners to act responsibly.

         22                 Much progress have been made by the

         23  hard- working staff of the Department of

         24  Environmental Protection in implementing the New

         25  York City's Right To Know Law.  They have steadily
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          2  increased the number of facilities who comply with

          3  the filing requirements of the law.  And, after a

          4  period of more than two years of not reviewing risk

          5  management plans for the facilities using extremely

          6  hazardous substance, the Department has set up an

          7  effective program of review.

          8                 Yet, much more needs to be done.  As

          9  a result of the tragic events of September 11th,

         10  there is increased concern that the terrorists, that

         11  terrorists might target facilities using toxic

         12  substance, substances.  As a result of these

         13  concerns, there has been a call on the national and

         14  local level for a re- evaluation of Right To Know

         15  Laws.  Some agencies and politicians have called for

         16  the repeal of the right, of rights of community

         17  members to information about the toxic substances in

         18  their community.

         19                 Since September 11th, many agencies

         20  have chosen to impose information blackouts.

         21  Currently, the New York City Department of

         22  Environmental Protection will not provide

         23  information to the public about chemical storage

         24  because of their concern of the possibility that the

         25  information will be used by terrorists.
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          2                 I'm attaching the response of a

          3  Freedom of Information Request submitted by my

          4  organization, NYCOSH, concerning a facility in

          5  Brooklyn, which we filed under the New York City

          6  Right To Know Law, in which all the information,

          7  other than the facility's name, was redacted at the

          8  request of the police department.  While there is no

          9  question that the public's right to know must be

         10  balanced against the need to protect communities

         11  from these, from toxic targeting by terrorists, we

         12  believe that it is imperative that a policy must be

         13  developed with the, that, which protects the rights

         14  of community members, community- based advocacy

         15  organizations and academic researchers to

         16  information about the use of toxic substances in

         17  this City.

         18                 Limiting the right to know is a

         19  dangerous and, is dangerous and short- sighted.

         20  Although DEP has said it is working on a policy to

         21  deal with this issue, such a policy has not been

         22  forthcoming, and I must say that this morning, or

         23  this afternoon, members of the Department have

         24  assured me that they are working on such a policy,

         25  that it is being discussed at the highest levels of
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          2  the police department and the DEP legal offices.

          3  So, we are pleased to have gotten that reassurance.

          4  However, we are concerned that the, that the outcome

          5  may limit the information, which will only create

          6  additional wall behind which irresponsible employers

          7  will hide.

          8                 We know that there are irresponsible

          9  employers operating in the City.  On April 25th,

         10  2002, a chemical explosion at Kaltech (phonetic)

         11  Industries on 19th Street, in a mixed use building,

         12  caused, was caused by improper mixing of chemicals.

         13  Miraculously, there were no fatalities and only 36

         14  people were injured.  The United States Safety and

         15  Hazard Investigation Chemical Board, CSB for short,

         16  conducted an investigation in the aftermath of the

         17  explosion, interviewing workers and witnesses and

         18  reviewing regulation.  In its report, the Chemical

         19  Safety Board found that Kaltech did not maintain a

         20  chemical hazard communication program in accordance

         21  with established OSHA standards.

         22                 Despite the fact that City, State and

         23  Federal agencies, such as the fire department, DEP

         24  and the New York State Department of Environmental

         25  Conservation and OSHA each conducted, each conduct
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          2  inspections of facilities that store or use

          3  hazardous substance, the Board found that there is

          4  little to no communication between these agencies.

          5  The Chemical Safety Board suggested that agencies

          6  should cross- check permits and, and written

          7  training programs, and contact other agencies in

          8  their absence or inadequacy.  Specifically, the

          9  Chemical Safety Board recommended that a referral

         10  program should be put in place between the fire

         11  department, New York City's Fire Department, Bureau

         12  of Fire Prevention, which issues hazardous material

         13  permits, and the Department of Environmental

         14  Protection.

         15                 Given the scarce resources for

         16  enforcing City, State and Federal laws governing the

         17  use and storage of toxic substances, it would make

         18  sense for the City to, one, review the efficacy of

         19  cross- training inspectors so that referrals would

         20  be made to appropriate City agencies, and, two, that

         21  the City work with other State and Federal agencies

         22  to develop a program of referrals to appropriate

         23  enforcement agencies.

         24                 Furthermore, although a record of

         25  facilities are now, a record number of facilities
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          2  are now in compliance with the City's Right To Know

          3  Law, DEP staff estimates that only 50 percent of the

          4  facilities who should be reporting are doing so.

          5  This, like many other problems faced by the program,

          6  is a resource issue.  Additional resources are

          7  necessary to aggressively seek out those facilities

          8  in the City that are not in compliance with filing

          9  requirements of this law.

         10                 Probably, the most effective method

         11  of reducing the threat of terrorist targeting

         12  facilities using toxic substances, is to substitute

         13  the use of safer, less hazardous substances for

         14  those currently in use.  The New York City Right To

         15  Know Law already contains language necessary to

         16  require facilities to substitute safer chemicals for

         17  extremely hazardous ones.  However, that section of

         18  the law is weak and unenforceable.

         19                 While DEP has recently made great

         20  strides to beef up its efforts in reviewing the risk

         21  management plans submitted by facilities using

         22  extremely hazardous substance, the most important

         23  way to reduce the threats to the public in general

         24  and communities in which extremely hazardous

         25  substances are used, is to institute a meaningful
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          2  program of toxic use reduction, with clear goals and

          3  timetables for implementation.

          4                 I urge you to pass the legislation at

          5  hand and then move on to a more comprehensive

          6  overhaul of the enforcement interagency cooperation

          7  and right to know.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          9  thank you Joel. Professor.

         10                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  Yea, thank you

         11  Council Member.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- You gotta --

         13                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Yea, I shall.

         14    I'm Philip Weinberg, a Member of the Hazardous

         15  Substance Advisory Board appointed by the City

         16  Council, and a Professor of Law at St. John's

         17  University School of Law, where I teach

         18  environmental law. I appreciate this opportunity to

         19  comment on the Community Right To Know Law and

         20  legislation proposed to strengthen it.

         21                 The Department of Environmental

         22  Protection and its able staff are to be commended

         23  for their diligence in bringing over 5,600

         24  companies, government agencies and other entities

         25  storing hazardous chemicals in this congested City
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          2  onto its database, and for the most part, into

          3  compliance with this important law.

          4                 But, there are several important

          5  steps that we need to take before the City's

          6  residents are truly safe, not only from accidental

          7  releases like last year's Kaltech (phonetic)

          8  explosion in Manhattan, which Joel Shufro also

          9  alluded to, but to the heightened threat of

         10  terrorists or other intentional exposures to toxic

         11  chemicals.

         12                 First and foremost, the quantity of

         13  hazardous substances stored in New York must be

         14  greatly reduced.  The Department has jurisdiction

         15  over 217 facilities, by its own numbers, that store

         16  chemicals classified by the United States

         17  Environmental Protection Agency as extremely

         18  hazardous.  Although departments, although the

         19  Department's Rule 41- 11 implementing the Right To

         20  Know Law requires that the risk management plans

         21  facilities storing extremely hazardous substances

         22  must file include a risk reduction program, this has

         23  not proven effective.

         24                 An amendment to the Right To Know Law

         25  itself is needed to explicitly mandate the reduction
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          2  of extremely hazardous chemicals.  And this, I

          3  believe, would be to the benefit of all concerned,

          4  the industry itself, as well as the Department, the

          5  City Government, the responders, like the fire

          6  department and police, and every New York citizen.

          7  And, I've taken the liberty of drafting a bill,

          8  which is annexed to my testimony, which would

          9  achieve that result by just some modest changes in

         10  the existing legislation to mandate that result.

         11                 As my fellow Advisory Board Member,

         12  Joel Shufro, and I pointed out in a recent op- ed

         13  article, which appeared in the Daily News on

         14  September 30th, also annexed hereto, we can't count

         15  on the Federal Government, or for that matter, the

         16  companies that store these toxic chemicals, to

         17  reduce these quantities.  We know from the

         18  accidental release of methyl isocyanate in Bhopal,

         19  India, resulting in thousands of deaths a few years

         20  ago, how devastating toxic discharges can be.

         21                 Indeed, a presidential terrorism

         22  expert, Rand Beers, noted in a National Journal

         23  article that chemical plants have a vulnerability --

         24  this is a quote, which has a catastrophic

         25  characteristic that could approximate that of the
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          2  World Trade Center.  I believe -- close the quote,

          3  speaking for myself, I believe that mandating the

          4  reduction of toxic stored in this City is absolutely

          5  essential, and a higher priority than ever since

          6  9/11, and the Right To Know Law should be promptly

          7  amended to mandate this result.

          8                 Second, the Department has to balance

          9  guaranteeing the public's right to know, the very

         10  reason for this legislation, and the Federal statute

         11  on which its modeled, with protecting us from

         12  terrorists and other intentional misuse of

         13  information about toxic storage.  The DEP is now

         14  developing such a policy, much to its credit, and

         15  the Council-appointed Advisory Board Members have

         16  asked to be consulted as that process by letters

         17  sent to Commissioner Ward.

         18                 With regard to the three bills, I

         19  support 122, requiring DEP to include the number of

         20  violations of this law, and also the Hazardous

         21  Substance Emergency Response Law, in its annual

         22  report, together with the orders issued by the

         23  Commissioner.  The current annual report actually,

         24  on page 38, does list the number of violations, but

         25  not the other material.
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          2                 More important is 124, which would

          3  devote fees under this program to inspection and

          4  enforcement, actually, just to inspection of right

          5  to know, instead of siphoning them off to the City's

          6  general funds and expanded to enforcement, as it

          7  should be, and I agree with the Commissioner

          8  Avaltroni about that.  It's absolutely essential to

          9  maintenance of this program, which is much too

         10  important to depend on the vagaries of the City's

         11  financial condition.

         12                 The same, however, should be true of

         13  the penalties recovered under 24- 713 for

         14  violations, and we're not inventing the wheel here,

         15  because in the State's Environmental Conservation

         16  Law, Section 71- 1929, which I refer to, penalties

         17  paid by water polluters go directly to a State

         18  Conservation Fund, set up by State Finance Law,

         19  Section 83, to be devoted to land acquisition and to

         20  fish and wildlife management, not into the coffers

         21  of the State, where they might build a highway or

         22  something.

         23                 Similarly, penalties for many

         24  hazardous waste violations, under Section 71- 2725

         25  of the Environmental Conservation Law, go to a
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          2  hazardous waste remedial fund, and the same should

          3  be true here, and the bill should be amended to

          4  apply to penalties, as well as fees.

          5                 Finally, I support 585, increasing

          6  the penalties for violations, as was done in 1993,

          7  and is due to be done again, certainly.  However,

          8  the last sentence to be added to 24- 713(b), making

          9  penalties imposed on corporations, under that

         10  provision, special fines under Penal Law 80.10,

         11  seems a little puzzling because we're talking in

         12  that subdivision about civil penalties, and the

         13  Penal Law provision, of course, relates to penalties

         14  following criminal conviction.

         15                 So, I would wholeheartedly support

         16  the new addition, if it was added to 713(a), rather

         17  than (b), which deals with criminal penalties for

         18  false statements.  And, again, I appreciate the

         19  opportunity to suggest how best to improve this

         20  valuable program.  Thanks very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         22  thank you both very much for your very valuable

         23  testimony.  Yea, your last point about the Penal Law

         24  24- 713(a) and all that, we're going to make that --

         25  we caught that, but thank you --
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          2                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, with

          4  regard -- I'm just sort of, I'll just start with,

          5  where's Joel? Okay.  Let's talk a little bit about

          6  the point that you raised, Joel, about the DEP's

          7  policy regarding being forthcoming with information,

          8  and that they're working on a policy to figure out

          9  what information they're going to let out and what

         10  they're not going to, and you indicated that the DEP

         11  said that they're going to, that their in the midst

         12  of working on this.

         13                 MR. SHUFRO:  I was told that the

         14  legal departments of DEP and the police department

         15  are in communication with each other at the highest

         16  levels --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         18                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- To try and work this

         19  policy out.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, Professor

         21  Weinberg --

         22                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- What it is, I don't

         23  know.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, and

         25  Professor Weinberg stated that you would like to see

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that Council- appointed Hazardous Substances

          3  Advisory Board Members to be consulted in this

          4  process, you sent the letters to --

          5                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Yes --

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Yes --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Commissioner

          8  Ward.

          9                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- We suggested

         10  that to DEP, and we sent a joint letter to

         11  Commissioner Ward, suggesting that that take place.

         12  We're --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         14                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Concerned,

         15  there's certainly a tension between the two needs,

         16  we just don't want to see the baby thrown out with

         17  the bath water there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, there's

         19  also certainly tension between the police department

         20  and, you know, DEP.  I'm sure --

         21                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- That's what I

         22  meant, exactly --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- And since

         24  so, and certainly the intent was for the public to

         25  know not for only the government regulators and
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          2  government law enforcement people to work, so,

          3  they'll be fully transparent to those people, but,

          4  did they give you any timetable, any guess when this

          5  might be forthcoming?

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  Well this is, this has

          7  been, we were promised the policy, we were told that

          8  the policy was, they were working a policy about six

          9  months ago, and we have raised this at every

         10  subsequent --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         12                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Advisory Board

         13  meeting.  All we know, as one of the Deputy

         14  Commissioners said to us, is this is a very

         15  complicated, difficult --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         17                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Issue that the

         18  Departments are working on.  He assured me that,

         19  that they were working on it, and --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- When did you

         21  write to Chris Ward?

         22                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  I don't recall

         23  the precise date, it was about two months ago --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- About two

         25  months ago --
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          2                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- I would say,

          3  approximately.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Has your letter

          5  been answered?

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  No --

          7                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- No --

          8                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- I have to say with,

          9  though I have, was also told yesterday, today, that

         10  a letter was put in the mail to us yesterday, to

         11  respond to our latest letter --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Okay.  Well,

         13  you know, keep me in the loop if you want --

         14                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- We do --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- If you want

         16  to give me a copy of your old letter that you sent

         17  to Chris Ward, I can certainly make sure that we get

         18  you an answer.

         19                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  We'll do that.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, I'd be

         22  happy to try to, I'm not going to tell him what to

         23  say, but --

         24                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Right, no, we do --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- You know,
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          2  some kind of answer, I think, would be appropriate,

          3  and so we'll see if we can get that --

          4                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- No, and we do,

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- For you --

          6                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- We do believe that

          7  this is a public policy issue that needs --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

          9                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- To be fully

         10  discussed, both in the, at the level of the Advisory

         11  Board, but also with the Council.  This is an issue,

         12  which I think --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         14                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Public has a strong

         15  stake in it --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         17                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- And it needs to be

         18  discussed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And, also what

         20  I'll do, I'll just mention it to Mr. Manning that

         21  this issue has come up, and you know, if you could

         22  just take a look at whatnot, these two gentlemen

         23  will be responded to in a timely basis.  We'd --

         24                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- That would be

         25  very helpful, thank you --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- We'd

          3  appreciate that. Yea, you should go in and say hi to

          4  him after you get off the witness stand, Mr.

          5  Manning's a nice guy, you can --

          6                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Okay, we

          7  shall --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- He can help

          9  you out. Let's see, I made some other notes on your

         10  testimony.  You indicated, Professor Weinberg, that

         11  by DEP's own numbers, 217 facilities, that file,

         12  that have extremely hazardous substances and have to

         13  file the risk management plans, and of the need to

         14  amend the Right To Know Law to mandate the reduction

         15  of EHS's and as you said, you've attached some

         16  legislation to that effect.  We would like to thank

         17  you for that, and I just want direct Counsel to the

         18  Committee to give this a thorough read and see

         19  whether its something that we may choose to advance,

         20  either in its current form or in an amended form,

         21  and we thank you for that.

         22                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  Thank you for

         23  looking at it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure,

         25  it's my pleasure.  This is kind of a threshold
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          2  question here, kind of a broad question.  I guess

          3  it's for either or both of you.  How do you think

          4  the DEP could better create compliance with the

          5  Right To Know Law?  Anything that the DEP could and

          6  should be doing better?

          7                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  Well, the main

          8  thing I think is to concentrate, as we've both urged

          9  on risk reduction, which would be to the benefit of

         10  all concerned, in government and outside of

         11  government.  I was glad to hear the Commissioner

         12  refer to the fact that they had 15 inspectors, that

         13  includes, I guess, the responders, as well as the

         14  inspectors, and certainly personnel in the past was

         15  a problem, it's seems that problem seems to be

         16  alleviated.  I think making sure that both the fees

         17  and the penalties for violation are addressed to the

         18  program would be enormously beneficial.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, he kind

         20  of, we'll he made statements that it was a self-

         21  sustaining entity, and all the monies that were

         22  generated by the RTK program sort of stayed under

         23  the RTK tent, so to speak.  And, so, we're going to

         24  do some further checking on that to make sure that

         25  that is indeed the case --
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          2                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- But, if I may

          3  say so, even within the tent, there are several

          4  different rooms, and I think enforcement and

          5  inspection are the two rooms within the tent that

          6  that money ought to be addressed to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Duly noted, and

          8  we'll try to get a handle on that, and even if we

          9  have to amend Intro. 124 to put perhaps an emphasis

         10  on the inspections, rather than dedicating all the

         11  monies to the inspections, which is what 124

         12  currently calls for, maybe we could do 124 in a

         13  slightly different way, which --

         14                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  -- Sure --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Which will

         16  get everybody everything they want, which is

         17  certainly an emphasis on people going out there, but

         18  some recognition that other aspects of the program

         19  do continue to have to run.

         20                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- Sure --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- So that

         22  would be good. One other question, to what sector of

         23  the business community should DEP reach out to, to a

         24  greater extent, regarding the Right To Know Law to

         25  ensure greater compliance and the safety of our
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          2  communities?  Is there a business sector out there

          3  that DEP has to do a little better?

          4                 MR. SHUFRO:  Well, each year, the

          5  Department has targeted various sectors to try and

          6  bring them into the tent, to get them to file.  So,

          7  I know that, I think it was last year they targeted

          8  funeral homes, and this year they've targeted auto

          9  body shops, to bring them in, and that's why we have

         10  had an increased number of filings.

         11                 However, I did want to go back, just

         12  for a second, because at our last meeting, the staff

         13  was concerned that they felt that they were

         14  operating at the maximum capacity, at this point.

         15  That they did not feel that they could expand the

         16  number of facilities that were, they were reaching

         17  at this point for lack of staff and facilities, and

         18  perhaps the funding bill would facilitate their

         19  ability to do that, but it is of concern to us that

         20  only 50 percent, that they estimate, that only 50

         21  percent of the facilities that are, should be

         22  filing, are.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, that is

         24  their estimate --

         25                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- That is there
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          2  estimate, not ours.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That they're

          4  currently capturing about 50 percent --

          5                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- That's correct --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Of the

          7  universe --

          8                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Was that in

         10  their 2003 report?  Or, --

         11                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- No, it was not in

         12  their report, but that was stated to us on several

         13  occasions --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         15                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- At board meetings.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  What do

         17  you think of this consultant idea?  When I first

         18  came on board as Chairing the Committee, I said,

         19  look, you've got to figure out a way to find out

         20  who's not on the system, and try to get that done

         21  and --

         22                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- We support that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- What's your

         24   --

         25                 MR. SHUFRO:  -- We support that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, we'll take

          3  that progress, that's good.  Thank you both very

          4  much and let us know how it works out with that

          5  letter from Chris Ward.  If we can be of any help,

          6  please let us know.

          7                 PROFESSOR WEINBERG:  We shall, thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you bet.

         10  And, I'd like to recognize the presence of Council

         11  Member Bill DeBlasio, from Brooklyn.  So, we have

         12  the pleasure of calling up as our next panel, Nora

         13  Nealis, Director of the Neighborhood Cleaners

         14  Association, and my friend Don Halperin, also with

         15  the Neighborhood Cleaners Association.  Greetings.

         16  Sorry about that, got a little carried away there.

         17  The Counsel to the Committee put down Neighborhood

         18  Cleaners Association.  We know that you've moved

         19  past that now to National Cleaners Association.

         20                 MS. NEALIS:  We had a recent name

         21  change.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.  I would

         23  like to point out before I introduce our panelists

         24  here, I was with Nora and Donald yesterday, as

         25  National Cleaners Association, every year they have
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          2  this great program that they do every year called

          3  Coats for Kids.  Dry cleaners throughout the City

          4  collect coats and they refurbish them, they clean

          5  them and they make them available to homeless

          6  shelters and other organizations, and individuals

          7  and schools that have that need.  There's now a

          8  partnership between the National Cleaners

          9  Association and the City Council to put boxes in all

         10  of our district offices to collect the coats.  So,

         11  we were just together yesterday on that very

         12  important and very, very nice effort, and I'd like

         13  to thank the NCA for their support of that -- for

         14  their sponsorship of that, that's a wonderful, it's

         15  an active, great corporate citizenship and caring

         16  and we were greatly appreciative for your efforts in

         17  that regard.  And, so, we're very happy to have you

         18   --

         19                 MS. NEALIS:  -- And we appreciate --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Both with us

         21  here today --

         22                 MS. NEALIS:  -- And we appreciate you

         23   --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         25                 MS. NEALIS:  -- You folks giving us
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          2  another outlet to bring more coats --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- You bet --

          4                 MS. NEALIS:  -- In so that more kids

          5  can be kept warm with dignity, it's a good thing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, thank you

          7  for being here.  Our most able counsel, Donna De

          8  Costanzo, will put you under oath, and then we'll

          9  proceed.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         11  right hand. In the testimony that you are about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MS. NEALIS:  I do.

         15                 MR. HALPERIN:  I do.

         16                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  thank you. Please state your name for record and

         19  proceed with your testimony.  But, I caught you

         20  here, I caught you here.  On your letterhead, it's

         21  printed National Cleaners Associate, but it's typed

         22  out Testimony by Neighborhood Cleaners Association.

         23  So, --

         24                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- There's a reason,

         25  I'll explain-
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          2                 MS. NEALIS:  -- He's responsible --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- You can't take

          4  the neighborhood out of the National Cleaners

          5  Association.  You're neighborhood people, you can't

          6  take the neighborhood out of you, you just can't do

          7  it --

          8                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- That's me --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Oh, I see --

         10                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- We, I didn't even

         11  want them to change their name, and I hate to admit

         12  when I lose, so --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Good for you

         14  Don --

         15                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Of course, it took

         16  him three years to lose, so, you know, he did put up

         17  an able fight.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay --

         19                 MS. NEALIS:  Okay, Mr. Chairman --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Please

         21  proceed.

         22                 MS. NEALIS:  Mr. Chairman, Members of

         23  the Committee, my name is --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Can you pick

         25  the microphone up just a little bit, so it's right
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          2  like that.

          3                 MS. NEALIS:  My name is Nora Nealis

          4  and I'm the Executive Director of the National

          5  Cleaners Association, commonly known as NCA.  We

          6  represent approximately 1,200 dry cleaners in the

          7  City of New York, and on their behalf, I thank you

          8  for the opportunity to testify today in opposition

          9  to the proposed penalty increases in 585.

         10                 In recent years, New York City dry

         11  cleaners have faced dramatically increased costs of

         12  operations in order to comply with new City and

         13  State Environmental Regulations, which mandated the

         14  purchase of new equipment and engineering controls,

         15  imposed new government fees, instituted new

         16  inspection fees, and require new and onerous

         17  paperwork and reporting burdens.  In addition, their

         18  are other costs of operation have been increasing,

         19  while dry cleaning volume is decreasing and dry

         20  cleaning prices have not risen commensurately.

         21                 As a result, from the point of view

         22  of dry cleaners, which I learned today, represent

         23  the majority of FIF filers, now is not a good time

         24  to increase penalties. Historically, because the DEP

         25  inspectors focused on the dry cleaning solvent
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          2  contained in the machines, the RTK submissions were

          3  relatively easy for cleaners to comply with.  It was

          4  simple, and it worked.  However, as enforcement

          5  activities stepped up with DEP, inspectors have

          6  begun telling cleaners that they should be also

          7  evaluating their soaps and pre- spotters, to

          8  determine if these products contain even a minimum

          9  ingredient which appears on the City's reporting

         10  list.

         11                 Determining which products contain

         12  which listed chemicals in sufficient quantity to

         13  warrant reporting, is daunting and frustrating.  I

         14  consider myself to be more sophisticated about these

         15  issues than the average dry cleaner, yet, the first

         16  time I attempted to file a Right To Know report, I

         17  spent untold hours comparing listed ingredients on

         18  the MSDS sheets to chemicals appearing on the City's

         19  list, surfing the web and making phone calls in

         20  search of concentrations and weights, all in an

         21  effort to determine whether or not it was there

         22  insufficient quantities to be reported, and more

         23  than once I was wrong.

         24                 I've attached to my testimony

         25  information about a sample pre- spotter known as

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Pyratex.  If you wade through all that material, and

          3  then imagine yourself as your neighborhood dry

          4  cleaner trying to evaluate whether or not that

          5  chemical needs to be reported, you'll see just what

          6  I'm talking about.  And, that is just one of the

          7  many pre- spotting agents cleaners use, and the

          8  recent focus on these low volume chemicals have made

          9  filing Right To Know reports incredibly

         10  overwhelming.  It requires a major investment in

         11  investigating, often yielding insufficient

         12  information, sometimes due to proprietary issues of

         13  the manufacturers.  Failure to report these trace

         14  chemicals may result from an innocent oversight.

         15  Yet, the minimum penalties contained in Intro. 585

         16  create a significant financial exposure for the

         17  neighborhood dry cleaner.

         18                 Like a thousand small cuts, when

         19  taken in concert with all the other fee and

         20  violation increases, it threatens the survival of

         21  the business, or discourages them from even

         22  remaining in the City.  It's the small mom and pop

         23  cleaner who does it all himself and can least afford

         24  these fines that are the ones most likely to suffer.

         25                 We know a full consideration of this
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          2  issue is not possible in the time available today.

          3  We hope that we will have the opportunity to work

          4  with you as you move forward.  In doing so, we hope

          5  you will consider the following precepts:

          6                 Harshest penalties should be reserved

          7  for those who blatantly disregard the law,

          8  particularly those who fail to file or intentionally

          9  report falsely.  Not for those who attempt to

         10  comply, but fall prey to the law's complexity.

         11                 The DEP should consider revising its

         12  list and threshold reporting requirements to be more

         13  in line with the Federal EPA.  New Jersey DEP

         14  recently took a similar step and is reported they're

         15  very pleased with the results of the initiative.

         16                 In the absence of that, the DEP

         17  should work with the business community to identify

         18  reportables by trade name prior to the imposition of

         19  penalties.  The NCA would be happy to work with them

         20  on this.

         21                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         22  testify.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24  Thank you very much for your testimony Nora.  With

         25  regard to, one of the precepts you listed here is
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          2  that DEP should consider revising its list and

          3  threshold reporting to be more in line with the

          4  Federal EPA.  I'm reading this, this is your

          5  statement, and New Jersey took similar steps and it

          6  is reported they are pleased with the results of

          7  their efforts over there.  Yea, perhaps we should

          8  reach out to Jersey DEP.  If there are particular

          9  people in Jersey DEP that we could reach out to --

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Be delighted to share

         11  it with you --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- On that and

         13  you could provide that to Donna De Costanzo, Counsel

         14  to the Committee --

         15                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Okay --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- We'd be

         17  pleased to follow- up on that.  Certainly, you know,

         18  our attempt here certainly is to bring as many

         19  people into -- people who are supposed to file, to

         20  make sure that they do file.  It's not my intention

         21  to expand the number of chemicals or whatever, but

         22  by DEP's own admission, when there are so many

         23  people still outside the system, who should be

         24  brought into this system, that's really what we're

         25  kind of going after here.  We don't see neighborhood
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          2  cleaners as the type of organization that we

          3  specifically wish to target.  So, we want to make

          4  this a friendly program for them that's easy to sort

          5  of work with and not be onerous.  I got my own dry

          6  cleaner to worry about, you know what I mean?

          7  They'll be coming after me.

          8                 MS. NEALIS:  And we're fully

          9  supportive of that, you know, a cleaner who is

         10  trying to stay under the radar and not comply with,

         11  whether its an air regulation or a right to know

         12  violation.  We're a hundred percent in favor of

         13  enforcement because it's the right thing and it's

         14  the fair thing to do, not only because it's the law,

         15  but also because it makes for an even playing field

         16  among the business community that's trying to

         17  comply.  Our issue here is when you get into the

         18  minutia and the low levels, where it's a struggle

         19  for a cleaner to even know whether or not it should

         20  be appearing on the form, and it is an impediment to

         21  filing, as opposed to an inducement.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  All right,

         23  well, let's just talk a little bit about DEP, as

         24  they are now, and how they interact with your

         25  industry, because you make up a large percentage of
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          2  the people who file in this program.  Is there,

          3  generally, a good rapport between DEP and your

          4  industry?  Do you get cooperation?  Do they --

          5                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Yea, the DEP --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Call them,

          7  Don calls them, do they respond?

          8                 MS. NEALIS:  The air people, where we

          9  have more dealings right now than we do on the Right

         10  To Know side.  You have a gentleman there heading up

         11  the dry cleaning program by the name of Ray Hodge

         12  (phonetic), who is superb.  He's knowledgeable, he

         13  knows what he's doing, he has a, he's a fair- minded

         14  approach, whose interested in the result, and he's a

         15  wonderful communicator, no issues there.  And, your

         16  Right To Know people are fair and decent also, and

         17  it --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Well --

         19                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Amazes me to find out

         20  that there are people out there they don't know

         21  about.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, let me

         23  just say that if there's, any time there's, if it

         24  does ever come to pass that there is some sort of

         25  log jam or issue between you and the folks at the
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          2  DEP, whether it's on the air stuff or whether it's

          3  on the Right To Know stuff, please let me know

          4  what's up and I'd be happy to try to facilitate

          5  that, although it would appear that you've got good

          6  relations with DEP, which is good.  So, I thank the

          7  DEP for that.

          8                 MS. NEALIS:  We appreciate the offer.

          9    Ray Hodge may not be there forever.  Don.

         10                 MR. HALPERIN:  Yea, I just want to

         11  add, first of all, because as I was listening to

         12  testimony, we spoke about these other onerous

         13  reporting requirements and everything.  Just so you

         14  understand, the Association, the Neighborhood

         15  Cleaners, before I even represented them, supported

         16  the passage by the State of what's known as Part

         17  232, which imposes all these onerous reporting

         18  requirements.

         19                 But, so we're not against all these

         20  things, we'd just like to see them, and that's our

         21  big problem with the State many times, we'd like to

         22  see a rational imposition of them and then we will

         23  be supportive of them.  And, if fines are going to

         24  be raised and this is what's a little clear,

         25  unclear, because you know we said we do have a good
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          2  relationship with DEP, and certainly with the air

          3  enforcement people.  What's happened recently is a

          4  new inspector or inspectors have come out and we

          5  don't understand exactly why.  Before, they were not

          6  requiring the reporting of all these spot, and you

          7  may have --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Oh, I see --

          9                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- A gallon, what

         10  we're talking about is like a gallon of spotting

         11  fluid that may, and there some more detailed

         12  information in what we gave you --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         14                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- And within that

         15  gallon, there's an unknown quantity because we don't

         16  even know how much necessarily --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         18                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- Of some substance

         19  that's on the list, and we're, and some cleaner is

         20  supposed to figure out whether that exceeds the

         21  reportable amount or not by extrapolating the total

         22  volume with this, and it's just beyond them.  So,

         23  what, and actually, because I was not focused on

         24  this issue until your hearing notice, so you did a

         25  good thing.  We will also reach out to DEP.  What
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          2  we're going to ask them, and what you may want to

          3  include considering in your legislation is that that

          4  a procedure be established whereby inquiries can be

          5  posed to the agency, and they can provide a list of

          6  some sort of reportables --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

          8                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- So that if, and we

          9  can use a brand name --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         11                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- And we'll say, if

         12  we have a, at what point, if you have one gallon of

         13  this, there's something called Khaki Clean

         14  (phonetic) or two gallons or three gallons, at what

         15  point, you know, do we have to report that?  And --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         17                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- Then at least, and

         18  then we will communicate to our members and let them

         19  know, and that, that'll go a long way to solve this

         20  problem we're talking about.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, why don't

         22  we do this. We've got Mark Lanigan here, who I see

         23  is taking notes.  And, if there's any way that that

         24  can be, this kind of cooperation between DEP and the

         25  industry, you could work with the DEP.  And, then

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you folks, who I imagine, have some sort of trade

          3  publication that goes out to your members or

          4  whatever, you can let them know that these are the

          5  amounts, or, some way through DEP and their ability

          6  to communicate, and your organization and your

          7  ability to reach out to your own members, how this

          8  kind of information can be put out there, so that

          9  people will just basically know what to do.  And,

         10  there can be some sort of understanding between DEP

         11  and your industry as to what they're going to be

         12  sticklers on and what, just be some kind of

         13  agreement on how to proceed.

         14                 And, I'm going to recognize Council

         15  Member DeBlasio for a question, but before I do,

         16  this is like a, it's a question, it doesn't mean it

         17  has to do with the Right To Know program.  Is there

         18  really such a thing as light starch?  You know what

         19  I mean, what's with that?  I put my shirts and

         20  there's like starch and there's no starch.  Everyone

         21  knows what no starch is, everyone knows what starch

         22  is, sometimes it's like, and so I ask sometimes for

         23  light starch and they say, okay.  But, recently I'm

         24  qualifying it, I say I'd like to have light starch

         25  if there is such a thing as that.  Is there such a
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          2  thing as that, you know, I'm asking, well, of course

          3  there is such a thing as that.  I'm not really quite

          4  sure there is such a thing as that.  Anyway, we'll

          5  talk about that afterwards or whatever, we'll have

          6  to figure that out.  I don't want to take away from

          7  Council Member DeBlasio's time, who has much more

          8  relevant questions and inquiries.  Council Member

          9  DeBlasio.

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  I'm delighted they took

         11  it on the record.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I want to

         13  commend -- you know I have the same conundrum.  I

         14  just want to say I think --

         15                 MS. NEALIS:  -- This is like going to

         16  a cocktail party --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- I think

         18  Chair Gennaro has gotten to one of the cutting edge

         19  issues facing the modern man of today.  The starch

         20  conundrum.

         21                 First, I want to greet my good

         22  friend, Don Halperin and welcome.  I don't know if

         23  this was covered earlier, or if I misunderstood in

         24  the testimony, so forgive me if there's any

         25  duplication here.  But, I guess I'm looking at this
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          2  from the neighborhood perspective for a moment.  I

          3  think we've all been in enough local dry cleaners to

          4  know that they are not multi national corporations

          5  and they are, you know, generally small family run

          6  operations, and certainly judging from the long

          7  hours, they're probably not making a ton of money or

          8  no one would possibly want to live that way.

          9                 So, I respect that from the

         10  beginning, but I also, of course, think that what

         11  the Chairman is doing here, I commend a hundred

         12  percent, is trying to really create an

         13  accountability dynamic with some teeth.  So, I guess

         14  I'm trying to understand the numbers and tell me if

         15  you have them.  How many of the dry cleaners in New

         16  York City, do we have any data by year, of how many

         17  have been fined in a given year, and to what

         18  totaled.  In other words, are we talking about a

         19  problem where, if there's 10,000 dry cleaners, you

         20  know a hundred of them that have been fined, and the

         21  others have really had no problem and would not have

         22  any difficulty complying with these new pieces of

         23  legislation or are we talking about a problem that's

         24  something throughout the industry?  Because it would

         25  help me, as a local representative to understand
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          2  whether, essentially, the problem is concentrated in

          3  a very few bad apples or if, in fact, this is

          4  something that's being felt across the industry.

          5                 MS. NEALIS:  Up until the past year

          6  or two, the average neighborhood dry cleaner did not

          7  have a lot of difficulty in filing his right to

          8  know, because the focus was strictly on the dry

          9  cleaning solvent that he was, that he had in his

         10  machine, and it was an easy one for him, cast

         11  numbers 127184, you fill it out, you've got x number

         12  of gallons, multiply it, you found your pounds, you

         13  sent it in, life was good.

         14                 In the past couple of years though,

         15  as DEP has begun, and I guess this is a testament to

         16  their real efforts in terms of trying to step up

         17  their own enforcement activities and bring everybody

         18  in line with what's required, the inspectors have

         19  been focusing on other chemicals the dry cleaner has

         20  on site. So, the cleaner is now, what was a very

         21  easy form for him to fill out, you know, and he took

         22  the one from last year and he just kind of re-

         23  copied it and sent it on back in with his check and

         24  it was a piece of cake for him.  What he's now faced

         25  with is taking all his MSDS sheets and trying to
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          2  measure them up against the pages and pages and

          3  pages of chemicals in the Right To Know booklet, and

          4  determine of the six ingredients that are listed,

          5  two of which have asterisks, one of which is

          6  identified as less than 10 percent --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- Well,

          8  let me --

          9                 MS. NEALIS:  -- You know, so he's,

         10  he's burdened by making these decisions --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- No, I

         12  understand that.  I want to redirect the question,

         13  because I think that what we're talking about is a,

         14  not an agile approach to defining the accountability

         15  and how the every day person, and let's face it,

         16  maybe there are language barriers or all sorts of

         17  other factors, if we're not being agile enough in

         18  implementation, I can't believe that something that

         19  with Chairman Gennaro's efforts and Commissioner

         20  Ward's efforts, we couldn't find a way to improve

         21  upon and make it more accessible and understandable

         22  to all involved.  That's not what I'm asking.

         23                 I'm asking, even with some of the new

         24  greater emphasis on enforcement, what percentage of

         25  the industry has sustained any significant fine?
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          2  Because, again, and I don't want to bias the

          3  question too much.  But, it's one thing to me if

          4  this is an every day occurrence for dry cleaners all

          5  over New York City versus if, literally, only a few

          6  of them have experienced any difficulty with the law

          7  that got them to a major fine.

          8                 MS. NEALIS:  I don't know how many

          9  DEP issues, where people just pay and we're not

         10  aware of.  I do know that we have somebody on staff

         11  who finds himself down at an ECB hearing once a

         12  week.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  All right,

         14  well, I would just say --

         15                 MS. NEALIS:  -- You know, so whether,

         16  you know, what that represents it's --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- I would

         18  urge you to help us understand that better.  Because

         19  I want to say, in support of my Chairman, that I

         20  think Chair Gennaro is trying to figure out here how

         21  we make this more effective and these are very good

         22  proposals to do that.

         23                 If what you're saying is that there

         24  is some impact on this industry that we need to

         25  understand, we need to hear that in a way that is
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          2  very specific and numerical.  I want to be sensitive

          3  to it, but I have to say at least from the

          4  perspective a local representative who's in the dry

          5  cleaner all the time, I've never had anyone bring

          6  this to my attention as they're feeling overly

          7  burdened.

          8                 So, if they are, not because of

          9  paperwork, we all deal with paperwork, and that can

         10  be improved upon.  But, if they're being burdened by

         11  fines that perhaps were zealous or too much or

         12  whatever, we something to show us the extent of the

         13  problem, what that's meant to them economically,

         14  what percentage of people have been affected, et

         15  cetera, et cetera.  Or else, I would say, I hear

         16  your theory, I hear your point in theory, but it

         17  doesn't affect my judgment of this legislation,

         18  unless there's some numbers to back it up.

         19                 MR. HALPERIN:  But, let me also

         20  answer another way.  Nora mentioned that she was

         21  personally had to deal with this issue because the

         22  Association runs a dry cleaning school on the same

         23  premises as their offices.  And, they had to go

         24  through all their chemicals and try to do this.  I

         25  don't think you were eventually fined, were you or
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          2  where you not?  Because you --

          3                 MS. NEALIS:  -- We wound up being

          4  late, so yea --

          5                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- Yes, so they ended

          6  up being fined.  I mean this is the Association,

          7  where they have all kinds of experts.  Now, they

          8  also have a few extra chemicals, they have to teach

          9  everybody how to use everything.  But still, they

         10  end up being fined because it took them so long to

         11  try to figure out, and they were working on it, and

         12  to make the proper reporting and it got kicked back,

         13  that they end up being fined.  So, --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- But,

         15  again, I would differentiate that, if there's a

         16  reporting process problem, I hear that loud and

         17  clear.  But, and if they were sort of a central

         18  point where all sorts of difficult chemicals were

         19  being shown to people, I could understand why,

         20  unfortunately, that might have led to a fine, sort

         21  of inadvertently, if you will. But, I'm trying to

         22  get to the every day life at the every day dry

         23  cleaner on the corner to understand, are they

         24  experiencing these fines, or is it essentially, a

         25  fairly small phenomenon?
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          2                 MS. NEALIS:  I'll do it a different

          3  way and this speaks to how much we know and how much

          4  we feedback from the member.  Councilman Gennaro,

          5  did your dry cleaner tell you when he got hit with a

          6  fine for late filing?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, I --

          8                 MS. NEALIS:  -- He did --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- He better

         10  not get a, he better file everything on time.  I'm

         11  the Chairman of the Committee for crying out loud.

         12                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- But I don't know if

         13  you heard what she said --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- But he did

         15  not --

         16                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- He was fined --

         17                 MS. NEALIS:  -- He did --

         18                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- So the fact he

         19  didn't --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- My guy was

         21  fined?

         22                 MS. NEALIS:  Yea.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Danny's?

         24                 MS. NEALIS:  Yea.

         25                 MR. HALPERIN:  He filed late because
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          2  of --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Are my

          4  shirts going to be --

          5                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- The complexity of

          6   --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- In a

          8  quandary with the starch? --

          9                 MS. NEALIS:  -- But he's doing the

         10  shirts for a buck, so what do you expect.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- No, see, no

         12  I wasn't aware of that.  I wasn't aware of that.

         13                 MS. NEALIS:  But, I'm saying is many

         14  times a cleaner doesn't necessarily report to either

         15  his Association or to his council person that he has

         16  an issue.  So, to answer that question more

         17  intelligently, what I would need from the DEP is how

         18  many violations they've issued to dry cleaners in

         19  the past year.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I think

         21  that would be in all of our interests --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         23                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Yes --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  -- To have

         25  that, and maybe Donna could follow- up on that.  I
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          2  think that we'd all like to understand that better.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yea, certainly,

          4  I think it would be great for DEP and the NCA and

          5  all its members to have the best possible working

          6  relationship, maximum amount of understanding, and

          7  to lay the ground rules out and just make it as easy

          8  as possible for the members to do what they want to

          9  do, which is to comply.

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  And we didn't, and when

         11  the inspectors first started asking for the

         12  additional chemicals, I want you all to realize, we

         13  didn't come up here yelling and screaming and

         14  saying, you know, we don't want to report this stuff

         15   --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Absolutely

         17   --

         18                 MS. NEALIS:  -- We've been struggling

         19  with identifying --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Yup --

         21                 MS. NEALIS:  -- You know, what

         22  chemicals there are, what gets changed and to try

         23  and find a way --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         25                 MS. NEALIS:  -- To deal with it
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          2  easily.  It's one thing when we're looking at a

          3  $250.00 fine, but when we start looking at $500.00

          4  and the possibility of one for every chemical, you

          5  have to do an awful lot of shirts at a buck in order

          6  to come up with that kind of money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  Or,

          8  worse yet, raise your prices.  Uh oh then, you know,

          9  then --

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Well that's another

         11  issue --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- That impacts

         13  me then.

         14                 MR. HALPERIN:  Well, the other point

         15  we made in the longer testimony, I don't think, we

         16  may have sort of alluded to here, is the very large

         17  dry cleaners will hire a consultant to do it, and

         18  they won't get fined.  But, the small guys can't

         19  afford it and they can end up getting, you know,

         20  these multiple fines --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         22                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- The other thing is

         23  even if they manage to avoid it, because, they have

         24  to go through much grief to get there that, and if

         25  there's larger fines there, you know, it may induce

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  them to do more.  But, we're not saying that what

          3  should be reported shouldn't be reported.  We're

          4  just saying --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

          6                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- There's probably

          7  easier ways to do it and, you know, and we, it's

          8  unfair, we never brought the issue to DEP, so, we're

          9  not blaming them because it's a fairly new issue --

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  -- No --

         11                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- With us --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Sure --

         13                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- So we're looking

         14  forward to try to work out something along those

         15  lines, where we can just have a list, instead of a

         16  list of these chemicals that nobody -- you know,

         17  just make something available that tells you this

         18  you have to report, but use, but use the brand name

         19  and that --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- Right --

         21                 MR. HALPERIN:  -- You now, that's

         22  what we'd like.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That would be

         24  great, and so we would, I'd like to ask Mark Lanigan

         25  to, as we've all seen, is taking notes to take steps
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          2  to try to accommodate the industry and we'll keep

          3  your concerns in mind as we contemplate what we're

          4  going to do with the bills that we're hearing today.

          5    But, at a minimum what's going to come out of your

          6  testimony today is a better understanding by your

          7  members of what they have to do.  I have every

          8  confidence that DEP is going to try to facilitate

          9  that.

         10                 MS. NEALIS:  Wonderful.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That sounds

         12  great.  And, if it doesn't go that way, then let me

         13  know --

         14                 MS. NEALIS:  -- Thank you --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  -- But I'm

         16  confident it will.

         17                 MS. NEALIS:  Thank you very much

         18  Councilman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet.  Okay,

         20  thanks a lot.

         21                 MS. NEALIS:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Anyone

         23  else wishing to be heard?  Hearing none, the hearing

         24  is adjourned.  Thank you all very much.

         25                 (Meeting adjourned at 3:12 p.m.)
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